ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON WAYS AND MEANS
Sept enber 8, 2005
1:01 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bruce Weyhrauch, Chair
Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Peggy W1 son
Representati ve Max G uenberg

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve Ral ph Sanuel s
Representative Carl Mses

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT

Representati ve John Coghill
Representative David Guttenberg
Representative Jay Ranras
Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Mke Kelly
Representative Kurt O son

COW TTEE CALENDAR

PERS/ TRS FUNDI NG SHORTFALL | SSUES
- HEARD

PREVI QUS COVM TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to report

W TNESS REGQ STER

MELANI E M LLHORN, Director

Heal th Benefits Section

Di vision of Retirenent & Benefits

Depart ment of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the division.

DAVI D TEAL, Legislative Fiscal Analyst

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE -1- Sept enber 8, 2005



Legi sl ative Finance Division

Legi sl ative Agencies & Ofices

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of PERS/ TRS
shortfall issues.

GARY HUTCHI SON

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Testified on behalf of hinself to recomend
a change to the [Alaska State] Constitution.

CHARLES GALLAGHER, Chair

Retired Public Enpl oyees of Al aska

Nor t hern Regi on Chapter

Ester, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of hinself during the
di scussi on of PERS/ TRS shortfall issues.

DORI S ROBBI NS, Menber

Retired Public Enployees of Al aska (RPEA)

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of PERS/ TRS
shortfall issues.

RI CHARD SOLI E, Ph.D.

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: O fered comments during the discussion of
PERS/ TRS shortfall issues.

JEFF JOHNSON

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of PERS/ TRS
shortfall issues.

Bl LL BJORK, President

NEA- Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testifying on behalf of NEA-Al aska, offered
advi se during the discussion of PERS/ TRS shortfall issues.

VWAYNE HEI MER

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of hinself to nake a
suggestion during the discussion of PERS/ TRS shortfall issues.

DON GRAY
Fai r banks, Al aska

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE - 2- Sept enber 8, 2005



PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of hinself during the
di scussi on of PERS/ TRS shortfall issues.

V. K. LAHDENPERA

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testifying on behalf of herself, offered
comments during the discussion of PERS/ TRS shortfall issues.

KEVIN Rl TCH E

Al aska Muni ci pal League

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the AM. during the
di scussi on of PERS/ TRS shortfall issues.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R BRUCE CHAIR WEYHRAUCH called the House Special Conmittee
on Ways and Means neeting to order at 1:01:36 PM Present at
the call to order was Representative Wyhrauch. Representatives
Rokeberg, Seaton, WIson, and Guenberg joined the neeting via
tel econference as it was in progress.

DI SCUSSI ON OF PERS/ TRS SHORTFALL | SSUES

1: 02:58 PM

CHAI R VWEYHRAUCH announced that the only order of business was
the discussion of PERS/TRS shortfall issues. He said that
presently there is approximately a $5.7 billion unfunded
liability and a question regarding what that neans to both the
systens, those in them and those retired from them He

clarified that the purpose of the hearing was not to delve into
policy debates over whether there should be a defined benefit or
defined contribution plan; that policy decision has already been
made by the legislature. He said the House Special Committee on

Ways and Means will be looking at the financial inplications
related to the unfunded liability and what, if anything, the
| egi sl ature should do about it. He said the conmittee will hear

public testinony and then decide whether there are a range of
options to present to the legislature to address the unfunded
liability. He reviewed that at the last hearing, the committee
did not take public testinony, but heard from recogni zed experts
on state retirement systens to place Alaska's system in the
context of the national perspective. He offered a brief history
of the House Special Commttee on Ways and Means and noted that
"this kind of a hearing fits within the strategic context" of
the conmttee.

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE - 3- Sept enber 8, 2005



1:10: 59 PM

MELANIE M LLHORN, Director, Health Benefits Section, Division of
Retirenment & Benefits, Departnment of Administration, referred to
a nenorandum in the commttee packet, dated Septenber 7, 2005,
whi ch she said shows the response of the division to questions
posed by Chair Wyhrauch. The first question asks what the
present anmount of the unfunded liability is for PERS and TRS
As of the draft valuation of June 30, 2004, the unfunded accrued
liability for PERS is $3.4 billion and $2.4 billion for TRS.
The total unfunded liability, as previously nentioned, is $5.7
billion. She noted that it takes the actuary six nonths to
conduct a conplete valuation on each of the systens. The
valuation for a one-year period ending June 30, 2005, was
avai l abl e for dissemnation in draft formas of April 2006. She
noted that the information was reviewed by the PERS and TRS
Boards in March, but the wvaluations were not finalized;
therefore, they are still in draft form

1:16: 55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DAVI D GUTTENBERG Al aska State Legislature, asked
if the state is still retaining the services of Mrcer [Human
Resource Consulting] as its actuary.

M5. M LLHORN answered yes; however, she noted that the division
went out for a request for proposal (RFP) for actuarial
services, and expects to award a contract for actuarial services
based on the successful bidder sonetine in October. She
estimated that there are five actuarial firns that have a
national reputation for working with governnent pension plans

and out of those five national firnms, the state received
proposal s from four.

1:18: 21 PM

M5. MLLHORN referred to the second question in the menorandum
whi ch asks about the definition of the term "unfunded liability"

and how it differs from "deficit" or "debt." She defi ned
unfunded liability as "the excess of the accrued liability over
the assets of the plan at the valuation date.” She expl ai ned

that a deficit is sinply "the anpbunt by which a sum of noney
falls short of what is necessary,” while a debt is "the anount

that is promsed and is owed." The question also asks how the
unfunded liability is calculated and whether it is likely that
the events on which the calculation is based will occur. MVs.

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE - 4- Sept enber 8, 2005



MIlhorn said the actuary goes through a detailed process in
determ ning what the accrued liability is for future obligations
of the system She noted that the valuation reports back to
1976 are available on line.

M5. MLLHORN stated that the valuation itself sets out the
assunptions that underlie the valuation. She said it's
inmportant to renmenber this is an annual process whereby the
system is evaluating and telling policy makers exactly what the
status is of the retirenent system She described the process
as "a snapshot in tine." The valuation reveals "what vyour
future obligation is for these nenbers as of that date.” She
added that it's also inportant to renmenber that valuations are
subj ect to change year after year.

M5. M LLHORN said that an inportant conponent of the valuation
report is that it sets out and determnes what the accrued
liability is by conparing the assets of the system to the
liabilities and thus establishing the enployer contribution rate
or the anmount the system needs to collect from the enployers in

order to pay for promsed benefits for its menbers. If the
system has accrued liability that is higher than the valuation
of the assets, the result is an wunfunded liability. That

unfunded liability for the system as of that point in tine, is
then anortized over a 25-year period to pay off the unfunded
liability. Based on the information as of June 30, 2004, the
actuary recomended that the PERS enployer contribution rate be
set at 28.19 percent and the TRS enployer contribution rate be
set at 41.78 percent. |f the board were to have approved those
recommendations, then those rates would have been set in place
for the next 25 years. Ms. MIlhorn noted that there are two
conponents to the enployer contribution rate: the normal cost
rate and the past service rate.

1: 25: 36 PM

M5. MLLHORN, regarding the |ikelihood of the events on which
the calculation is based occurring, indicated that comng into

pl ay are econom c and denographi c assunptions. She said those
assunptions are in place in order to pay for the future
obligations; however, it is also known that those assunptions
may change over tine. For exanple, she noted, the nedical cost
trend was reset in 2002 after a valuation. She said a new

nortality table was in place as of 2000. The targets are nade
by the actuary with the best estinmates that are avail abl e.

1: 28: 04 PM

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE - 5- Sept enber 8, 2005



M5. MVLLHORN turned to the third question in the menorandum

which asks what the liability neans in general and, in
particular, for: state finances, «credit rating, additional
appropriation, retirees, current enployees, and paynent of
medi cal and pension benefits. She noted that attached to the

pages of information provided by the division is a one-page
chart that shows the increase in the enployer contribution rate
from fiscal year (FY) 06-09 for five different categories: t he
State of Al aska, the University of Alaska, the school districts,

the nmunicipalities, and a total for all categories. For
exanpl e, she said, the increase to the State of Alaska in FY 06
is $40 mllion, for a total of $142 mllion.

1:29:09 PM

M5. MLLHORN said, "The projection is that this increnments up by
5 percentage points per year. And it's inportant to note when
we're tal king about an increase in 5 percentage points that that
is additive, which neans the enployer contribution rate for FY
06 for PERS, set at 16.77 [percent], when ... adopted at a 5
percent increase - 5 percentage points - ... neans that that
rate goes to 21 percent."”

1: 30: 52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked for an idea of what other
changes occurred, including what assunptions have changed.

1: 31: 08 PM

M5. MLLHORN noted that the valuation of 2002 was a "pretty
dramatic change for the system” She said there were sone
changes in assunptions and there were sonme experiences that were
taken into the system as of that wvaluation for 2002 that
included a change in the nmedical cost trend and the actual
experience as a result of nmedical costs for the system during
t hat one-year period. She offered further details:

There was a projection in place that indicated that
the nedical costs were at 8 percent and then that
woul d decrenent down to the next 9-year period, or so.
And when they reset that, they recognized that the
actual experience for the system year after year, was
closer to 9-10 percent, and so they reset the nedica
trend to 12 percent for the next 3 years, followed by
a decline in that nedical cost trend. And ... those

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE - 6- Sept enber 8, 2005



two factors added together for that valuation in 2002
added 10 percent to the enployer contribution rate in
one year for PERS and TRS.

M5. MLLHORN said a recomendati on based upon a valuation by
MIliman, the auditor of the system was that the actuarial
val uation systemitself needed to be changed. She indicated the
change was recommended "because they used a corridor nethod."
She explained that the corridor method "looks at a band that
surrounds your assets."” It was determned that that band was
t oo narrow. The recommendation was to use an "asset snoothing
nmet hod, " which she explained takes in the gains and |osses to a
systemin a 5-year period. The nethod is designed to "take the
volatility out of spikes in your enployer contribution rate.”
In order to make that change, it was necessary to "reset to the
mar ket value of assets,” which recognized all the |osses for
PERS and TRS in a one-year period. It added $1 billion to PERS
and about $600 million to TRS.

1: 35: 19 PM

M5. MLLHORN, regarding credit rating, said she believes the
Depart nent of Revenue shoul d address that question.

1: 35: 46 PM

M5. MLLHORN, in regard to additional appropriation, noted that
in accordance with SB 141, the [Alaska Retirenent Managenent

(ARM Board] will cone up with short- and long-term solutions to
deal wth the unfunded liability. That board wll be
"constituted" in COctober, will neet, and will provide a report

to the legislature regarding its recommendati on associated with
addi tional appropriation. Wth regard to retirees, she said the
liability has no inpact. She said, "Those benefits are
constitutionally pr ot ect ed under t he Al aska [ St at e]
Constitution, Article 12, Section 7. She said that has been
tested and upheld in the court system Those benefits cannot be
di m nished, nor inpaired; it's a contractual relationship that
exi sts.

1:36: 45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked what happens to the state and the
system when people retire early.

1: 37: 17 PM

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE -7- Sept enber 8, 2005



VB. M LLHORN asked for clarification as to whet her
Representative WIlson was referring to those who retire through
a retirenent incentive program (RIP) or when an enpl oyee chooses
toretire earlier.

1: 37: 51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON answer ed bot h.

1.37.56 PM

M5. MVLLHORN noted that the state has offered nultiple RIPs.
She sai d:

W have not actually calculated that to determ ne what

the inpact is, but we do know - based on the nost
recent analysis prepared in response to House Bill
329, which was a RIP bill - ... that due to rising

health care costs, it is exceedingly difficult for the

systemto actually find a savings in order to |et
the individual retire early. It's designed to give
t he individual three years of service, so long as the
i ndi vidual and the enployer nake contributions that
result in a savings. And we found that when that was

anal yzed in relation to House Bill 329, that the costs
were prohibitive to allow an individual under those
ci rcunst ances. You al nost had to delete the position
in order to realize a savings. C It was very
difficult to go back and peg that savings to the
system So, ... in a situation where there may have

been a projection that there would be a savings,
because you can go in and replace the position or have
the higher advance step placenent later on, it my
dimnish, erode, or change the 1initial projections
upon which you thought you were going to have a
savings but it didn't ultimately materialize into a
savi ngs.

1: 39: 54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON offered a case in point: She said when
soneone retires early from the school system and is replaced by
someone new at a lower pay scale, initially it saves the schoo
noney. However, because of the guarantees of the retirenent
program what happens is that the person who retired two years
early is not paying into the systemfor those two years.

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE - 8- Sept enber 8, 2005



1:41: 09 PM

M5. MLLHORN, in response to the second part of Representative
Wlson's original question, said if a person chooses to retire
early, that is calculated as part of the process. Wen a person
chooses to retire early, he/she takes an actuarial reduction in
hi s/ her benefit, which is not anticipated to result in an
unfunded liability to the system

1: 41: 46 PM

M5. MLLHORN returned to her review of the questions from the
menor andum  specifically the question related to what the
liability nmeans for current enployees. She said, "It's not a
direct inpact for our current enployees; however, enployers do
have increases in the enployer contribution rates and that has
fiscal inpact for their budget." Regardi ng the paynent of
pensi on and nedical benefits, M. MIllhorn said retirees wll
continue to receive them

M5. M LLHORN addressed the fourth question in the menorandum
whi ch asks when the wunfunded liability began and over what
period of time it has existed. She said although it is
difficult to pinpoint a specific period of tinme, there are known
occurrences that happened wth the system that are contributing
factors toward the unfunded Iliability. For exanple, nedical
assunptions were too low for a period of tine, a problem that
was renedied in 2002, which had the consequence of increasing
the enployer contribution rate dramatically. She said that
beginning in 1997, for approximtely a seven-year period, the
enpl oyer contribution rate was | owered because of surpluses in
the system resulting in a $460 mllion savings to the enployer,
with a realized savings of approximately $360 mllion due to an
I ncrease i n wages.

1:44: 01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG noted that alnbst every state in the
country has problens with its public enployee retirenent system
He asked specifically, if assunptions being nmade incorrectly or
too lowis a problemunique to Al aska.

1:44: 43 PM
M5. M LLHORN responded by nam ng two issues common anong all the

retirement systens: |oss of investnent income during the three-
year bear market in the early 2000s and rising health care

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE - 9- Sept enber 8, 2005



costs. Many of the pension systens enhanced their benefits

substantially during that bear nmarket. She stated that the
actuarial analysis information that was provided in January 2005
takes the unfunded liability at the $5.7 billion anount. She
cont i nued:

The plan changes that you're speaking to represent
$500 mllion out of the $5.7 billion. And out of

that, ... $400 mllion is attributed to ad hoc [post
retirement pension adjustnent (PRPAs)]. And t hat
| eaves you with $100 million in wunfunded liability

t hrough plan changes with the legislature. And so, ny
analysis is that the legislature has been very
judicious in not having that be one of the primry
factors. And it's a very small factor associated with
the unfunded liability.

1:47:05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if the teachers under TRS are al so
constitutionally guaranteed their retirement benefits.

1:47:24 PM

M5. M LLHORN answer ed yes.

1:48: 43 PM

M5. MLLHORN, in response to follow up questions, explained that
beginning in 97-98, there were surpluses in the system that
all owed the enployer contribution rate to be |owered, and she
confirmed that those surpluses |asted for seven fiscal years.

1: 49: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he would like a followup show ng
t hose anmounts and the inpacts to the state budget.

1: 50: 00 PM

M5. M LLHORN said she woul d provide that information

1: 50: 28 PM

M5. MLLHORN returned to the nenorandum and question six,

regarding the division's position on the unfunded liability.
She rem nded the commttee that there are three primary factors

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE -10- Sept enber 8, 2005



that contribute to the systemis unfunded liability: rising
health care <costs, loss of invest inconme, and change in
actuarial assunptions to better reflect changing information.
She nentioned a "sensitivity analysis,” which she said is
i nformation obtained through the valuations and in regard to the
i nvestment returns. She said it is shown at the back of the
previously nentioned presentation material from the division.
She said a sensitivity analysis doesn't necessarily | ook at just

the systenmls assunption; it tests variables to look at the
sensitivity associated. For exanple, two assunptions have a
high level of sensitivity: the investnment return and the
nmedi cal cost. She said the information in the handout isol ates

the investnent return into three specific categories and | ooks
at what the enployer contribution rate is as a result of that
i sol ati on. Those three categories are: base case, at 8.25
percent; optimstic, at 9 percent; and pessimstic, at 7.5
percent. She offered further details.

1: 54: 08 PM

M5. MLLHORN indicated that the following two charts show "what
that represents in a change to the contribution rate for
enpl oyers over that 25-year anortized period," for PERS and TRS,
respectively. The last page of the handout shows [the
hypot hetical effect of changes in liabilities and assets]. I t
shows that a 5 percent liability increase will increase the
enpl oyer contribution rate 3.4 percent for PERS and 4.7 percent
for TRS, while a 5 percent market asset decrease w || decrease
the enployer contribution rate .3 percent for PERS and .5
percent for TRS. She stated that an increase in liabilities has
a far greater inpact on the enployer contribution rate than a

change in the net assets. She stated her wunderstanding that
there was information available to conmttee nenbers from the
actuary as of July 14. In response to a request fromthe chair,

she said she would provide that information to the committee
She said it shows the change in net assets and liabilities for
PERS and TRS for the last 10 years, and it ties back to the $5.7
billion in unfunded liability.

1:57:48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG directed attention to the division's
answer to question six on the menorandum He said very little
has been discussed relating to how to contain the cost of health
care. He noted that a nunmber of insurance conpanies maxim ze
the amount that they will pay per procedure. He asked if the

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE -11- Sept enber 8, 2005



state's actuary has |ooked at the actuarial effect of
instituting nore stringent reinbursenent rates.

1:58: 35 PM

M5. MLLHORN said nedical benefits for nenbers are protected
under the Al aska State Constitution; therefore, the state nust

be careful about any changes it makes. The court ruled that
changes can be made; however, any decreases to benefits nust be
met with correspondi ng increases. She noted that in 1999, the

pl an changed nine different elements of the retirees' nedical
plan. She offered exanples. A lawsuit was brought forward as a
result of those changes. That particular lawsuit was remanded
for further analysis before the [Al aska] Superior Court. She
said the division talks to the Departnment of Law before making
any changes, to nmake sure it is in conpliance with the court
ruling.

2:01: 44 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said Ms. M|l horn has nentioned having

preferred providers. He asked, "Do you have a |egal opinion
t hat says that would be such a change?"

2:01:54 PM

VB. M LLHORN responded that currently the division is
contenplating that particular initiative. She said that after
conferring with the Departnent of Law, it does not appear to be
probl ematic. She said, "W are vigorously ... pursuing anything

that we can do that would not inpinge on that particular
| awsuit, and we continue to make those efforts and | ook at those

particular initiatives." She explained that Conm ssioner
Mat i ashowski has charged the division wth |looking at all
possibilities for cost containnent, and as part of that

initiative, the division had positive open enrollnment for the
active enployees, asking that docunentation be provided that
supports that all nenbers are eligible "for our 125 qualified
pl ans. " She said it was found that about 10 percent of the
popul ation did not provide the docunentation. She reported that
the realized savings to the active plan is projected to be about
$3 mllion annually. She said, "W are underway right now to go
through that very same process with our retirees.” She said
national auditing firns have determned that up to 15 percent of
individuals will not be able to support that they are eligible
for benefits under a plan during an open enrollnment, and the
projection is that the savings based on that percentage would be

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE -12- Sept enber 8, 2005



approximately $16 mllion annually. She added that SB 141
tasked the division to provide the legislature with report on
all cost initiatives.

2:04: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG expressed concern that the state may be
denying sone people coverage when they clearly ought to be
cover ed. He said for exanple that he has a foreign-born son

and "we had a devil of a tine getting sonme docunentation to
support that Daniel was eligible.” He suggested that that may
be an issue to cover at a future hearing. He said his question
had been in regard to the preferred provider |ist. He said he
also is concerned with the increasing cost of [nedical] care.
He asked if there may be sonme way to put a cap on the anount the
state will pay for the sane service. He suggested, "That's not
denyi ng anyone a benefit; it's sinply capping a cost."

2:05: 42 PM

M5. M LLHORN responded that she had spoken to Chair Wyhrauch
outside of the hearing to discuss putting together sone
information for the next House Special Commttee on Ways and
Means neeting to address this issue. Regarding putting a
[imtation on particular costs for procedures, she said she
would want to talk to the Departnent of Law to find out if that
woul d be an issue.

2:06:13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he wants that issue addressed and
would like to invite the Departnment of Law to the table. He
said he would also like to address whether people are being
deni ed because they can't cone up wth paperworKk.

2:06: 45 PM

M5. MLLHORN stressed that the division has not denied anyone
who can't provide paperwork but is eligible; it works with them
on a case-by-case basis. She said the intent is not to penalize
peopl e.

2:07:44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked what is being done nationally to
control costs, wthout changing benefits. He said he would |ike

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE -13- Sept enber 8, 2005



Ms. MIlhorn to address that question at the next comittee
meet i ng.

2:08:40 PM

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH requested that Representative Quttenberg refine
his question and submt it to the commttee. He said the
commttee is looking at these issues with a "macro view', rather
than with a "mcro view"

2:09: 37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG i ndi cated that working on nedical cost
control may help with [the unfunded liability].

2: 09: 56 PM

M5. MLLHORN directed attention to question 8 in the nmenorandum
whi ch asks when the legislature has to fund the liability or
when it will face a cash flow problem She said a 5-percentage
point increase, in and of itself, creates fiscal problens for
enpl oyers. She said it is expected that those rates wll
continue to rise until they reach that calculated rate. She
expl ai ned, "Every year that you're not at the calculated rate
recommended by the actuary it has the inpact of adding
additional liabilities to the system"

2:11:11 PM

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH asked what the effect of a cap would be on the
enpl oyer contribution rate.

2:11: 27 PM

M5. MLLHORN rem nded the commttee that regulation AAC. 35.900
was enacted in 1991 at the request of the Mnicipality of
Anchorage to cap the PERS enployer contribution rate at a 5
percentage point increase or decrease in any one year. She
explained that SB 141 supersedes that regulation; therefore,
AAC. 35.900 does not exist any longer and it will be up to the
Al aska Retirement Mnagenent Board "to nmke a determ nation

about enployer contribution rates going forward." In response
to Chair Wyhrauch's question, she said if the enployer
contribution rate was capped at 3 percent, addi ti onal

liabilities would be added to the system because the state
woul d be "pushing and deferring liabilities into the future.”
She stated, "In the last tw valuation periods, t hose

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE -14- Sept enber 8, 2005



contributing factors that built on the 2002 valuation can
primarily be attributed to not being at the calculated rate and

a rise in the health care cost. Those are really the two
factors that bring the 24.91 [percent] to 28.19 [percent] and 35
[percent] for ... [TRS] to 41 [percent]."

2:13: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked what happens if a nunicipality
cannot pay its part for one reason or another. She asked if the
state woul d be responsi bl e.

2:14: 05 PM

M5. MLLHORN answered that the system would not get the
contribution that it needs and the cost to the enployer would

I ncrease. VWen an enployer termnates its participation
agreenent with the retirenment system the retained actuary | ooks
at each individual nenber and provides options to all the
menbers to either vest in the system or refund out of it. At
the end of that election process by the nenbers, a termnation
report is generated that goes to the enployer. She said the
enployer is presented with a bill for paynment. Ms. Ml horn

said the division wirks wth those enployers to set up a
repaynent schedul e.

2:17: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked who is ultimately responsible.
2:17:49 PM

M5. M LLHORN responded that if the enployer truly cannot pay,
the enployee would still be provided wth the benefits. That
cost woul d be absorbed by the retirenent system

2:18:29 PM

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH clarified that Representative WIson's question
isin regard to who would be | egally responsible.

2:18: 53 PM

M5. MLLHORN said the State of Al aska would have a cause of
action and woul d pursue paynent fromthat particular enployer.

2:19: 22 PM

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE - 15- Sept enber 8, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG, regarding the 5 percent cap repeal in
SB 141, asked if Ms. MIlhorn is indicating that there would be
"no grandfathering and/or cap that relates to the unfunded
liability for Tiers I, Il, and I'll."

2:20: 04 PM
M5. M LLHORN answered yes. In response to a followup question
from Representative Rokeberg, she explained that the procedure
for PERS is now and wll continue to be to receive a
recommendation for the enployer contribution rate. She
cont i nued:

They set that rate as an average cal cul at ed percentage

anmount . They don't apply an individual enployer
contribution rate to the 155 enployers for PERS; they
adopt an average calculated rate. And for ... TRS

they have a single rate that is the rate used for al
TRS enpl oyers.

2:21: 32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he thinks the commttee should | ook
into this issue further

2:22:43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON nentioned accrued liability charts and
said he would like clarification at the next neeting on whether
that is in regard to a projected unfunded liability.

2:22: 59 PM

M5. MLLHORN returned to the menorandum and question nine, which
asks whether the |egislature should worry about the liability or
whether it will fix itself. She said there are three avail able
levers to inprove the funding status for the system to
experience higher investnent returns than projected for sone
period of time;, to reduce the benefit costs; or to receive a
cash infusion in order to reduce or elimnate the unfunded
liability.

2:24: 18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted for the record that any tine
benefit costs are reduced, it is inportant to take care that the

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE - 16- Sept enber 8, 2005



benefits are not reduced, because t hat woul d be
unconsti tuti onal .

2:24: 47 PM
M5. M LLHORN concurr ed.
2:24: 54 PM

DAVID TEAL, Legislative Fiscal Analyst, Legislative Finance
Division, Legislative Agencies & Ofices, said he would be
speaking in regard to a seven-page handout with charts [incl uded
in the commttee packet]. He said that while neeting with Chair
Weyhrauch the week before, he was shown an article from a
Nebraska newspaper regarding that state's pension funds. He
said Chair Weyhrauch asked himto create a simlar chart for the
State of Al aska. That chart is shown on page one of the
handout . He said the gist of the article is in the follow ng
st at enment : "Like many public pensions, benefits tend to
increase when the fund is flush; contributions go up when
shortfalls occur." The bottom of the graph shows a nunber of
actions that [Nebraska] took: lowering the retirenment age;
increasing cost of living benefits; and changing to an early
retiremnent. He said, "They're blamng that for the problens
they're now facing with unfunded liability.” The good news, M.
Teal said, is that Alaska did not really nodify its prograns.”
The bad news, he noted, is shown on page 2 of the charts, where
Alaska is shown to |look as bad or worse than Nebraska. He
suggested that the $5.7 billion wunfunded liability can be
thought of in ternms of being twice the anobunt of the annual
state budget, or one-quarter of the permanent fund; it's a |ot
of noney.

2:29: 27 PM

MR. TEAL said sonme questions to ask are: why is there a problem
when the state didn't do anything wong; what actions could the
state take; and what will happen if the state does nothing? He
said he thinks the chart is too sinple. Pensions are |long-term
i ssues, he said, and "it's better to avoid snap decisions on
| ong-term issues.™ He said that is not political advice, it's
just a realization that small differences conpound over tineg,
or, conversely, the inpact of changes takes a long tinme to
materialize.

MR. TEAL said Ms. MIIlhorn discussed the reasons for the gap's
exi stence, including market returns, life expectancy, and

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE -17- Sept enber 8, 2005



nmedi cal costs. He directed attention to page 1 of the charts.
He indicated that Nebraska decided to change its assunptions on
mar ket returns. The chart shows assets increasing but also a
junp in benefits. Alaska' s chart shows both, he said.

2:32: 54 PM

MR. TEAL said discussion has taken place regarding the dangers
of meking decisions about knowi ng exactly "where we are" and
what the projections are on cash flow He said the question is
whether the system is increasing its asset base or if the
problem is being conpounded now by annual payouts that exceed
cash inflow, thus increasing the size of the liability. He
recommended |ooking at a chart that |ooks at the future,
conplete with the inpact of "nodifying those assunptions and

taking action or not taking action.” He indicated it would be
hel pful to know whether the state faces an actual crisis or just
a potential liability that will hit some date in the future. He
conti nued:

Descri be the consequences of del ayi ng; convince ne that
this issue is not the same as hearing the Constitutional
Budget Reserve will be gone in two years, every single year
for the past decade. Because that’s ... what we have heard
t here, and how do we know that this isn't the sane thing?

MR. TEAL noted that at the last neeting, the conmttee heard
that unfunded liability is a nationwide problem and it also

heard a list of things that other states are doing about it. He
said the legislature can copy those other states or stunble upon
a solution of its own. However, he said he agrees wth Chair

Weyhrauch that there is a better chance of success if the
| egislature really understands the problem the inpact, and the
pros and cons of each potential action.

MR. TEAL noted that Representative Wyhrauch also asked himto
provide nore detail on the resources available to address the

pr obl em Specifically, given the price of oil, what the
limtations are on the actions that are faced because the state
has or doesn’t have the nobney to address it. He opined that the

Division of Retirenment and Benefits is in a much better position
than he is to talk about issues of sensitivity. He said Chair
Weyhrauch asked him to look at the overview of the budget; a
little nore than just PERS, it’s a kind of "heads-up" on what
the Legislature may face when it returns to Juneau in January.

2:35: 16 PM

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE - 18- Sept enber 8, 2005



He directed attention to page 3, which shows a fiscal sunmary.
He conti nued:

That circled nunber on line 29 of the [FY] 06 budget
shows that we've got a $2.6 billion budget, and that

gives us a surplus on line 30 of about $40 nmllion.
But there's a footnote there, and that's oil at $38 in
footnote 1. And in particular, |ook at footnote 4

that says FY 06 appropriations for fornmula prograns
excludes $414 nillion that went to public education.
That's because that appropriation for education
crossed fiscal years and ... doing that distorts year-
t o-year conparisons. If we were to adjust for that
the budget is actually at $3 billion. The next chart
on page 4 is a chart that is on our web site.
Typically, what that shows, is the fiscal gap and

then, at the type of various prices of oil, you can
see that at $38 that gap begins to turn into a surplus
appearing at the top of the chart. At $38 we
breakeven [with] no gap [or]... surplus. The current
price of oil is $57 and change. That's noted on the
charts, and that shows a surplus there of $1.1 billion
for FY 06.

Page 5 shows a revised fiscal summary, and this is the
response to that ... fiscal note on the traditional
summary - footnote 4. The danger there is that, as |
said, the FY 06 budget's really understated by $400
mllion, and if not for the use of that 'O05 surplus we
woul d be at $3 billion [with] break-even oil prices of
$44. And the danger here is that we are not really
| ooking at '06 anynore, we're |ooking at FY 07, and
it’s this $3 billion budget that's going to be the
base for the '07 budget - not the $2.6 billion that
(indisc.) in the fiscal summary.

So, what | did then was prepare another break-even
chart at a $3.5 billion budget. You can argue about
when we're going to hit $3.5 billion, whether it is
07, or "08, or '09, or 2010, but we wll get there
soon, and you can see on this chart that the breakeven
point is $53 a barrel, and that $57, where we are at
right now, wouldn't give us nmuch of a surplus - about
$250 mllion, which cones and goes real quickly in a
vol atile oil market.

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE -19- Sept enber 8, 2005



2:39:34 PM

MR TEAL conti nued:

[Chair Weyhrauch] also asked nme to talk about
suppl enental bids, because the idea was how nmuch noney
those high oil prices in '06 |leave us to address the
PERS/ TRS i ssue. This is very rough; [the Ofice of
Managenent & Budget (OVB)] and the departnents are not

really willing to talk about "supplenentals" at this
time of year, but we've got sone guesses. One is the
Federal Medicaid MWMatching Percentage (FMAP). They

told us last year [that] our Senators would try to fix
it, and then [they] argued that everything that we
know from the national perspective is that we woul dn't

get that noney. I think we can now admt that that
noney is not on the way; it's going to cost $55
mllion in the supplenental bill. Average Medicaid

supplenentals in the past 5 years have been about $23
mllion; it wouldn't surprise ne if we get another
suppl emental from Medicaid in that nei ghborhood.

The Marine H ghway System [is] another source of
suppl emrental needs. Partly because of fuel, and
partly because of ... <changes in ... underfunding,
$20-25 mllion may go there. Fire suppression was [a]
huge supplenental |ast year, about $40 mllion. Fire
season's bad this year, as well, but nmany of those
fires are on Federal land this year, and we nay get
away with no supplenental for fire suppression. But
typically, we'll have about $75 mllion a year for
ot her purposes, or other supplenental needs. |’ m
looking at a $150-200 mllion supplenental budget
request .

So, what we're looking at here is a true FY 06

surplus of about $500 mllion .... W wll have cash

but a ot of that - $400 million of it - is carried
forward from |ast vyear. So, [the] bottom line is,
you' Il have about $900 mllion on the table available
for purposes other than this $150-200 nmillion
suppl enent al . And looking to '07, as | said the

critical point there is that the starting point of the
'07 budget will be the $3 billion spent in '06 after
adjusting for that '05-'06 crossover. The ' 07
budget's likely to see increases from that point as
al ways: the FMAP will junp to about $75 million a

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE - 20- Sept enber 8, 2005



year, beginning in '07; the state PERS rate increase

will cost another $25 million or so, in general funds;
if the legislature again decides to fund PERS for
school districts, that’s another $40 mllion; and if

they give the same sort of increase that they gave
school districts last year, you're looking at $80
mllion. So, we're up somewhere between [a] $140-180
mllion increase on just those itens for 'O07.

2:42:36 PM

MR  TEAL, in response to a question from Representative
Gruenberg, said Medicaid will probably increase as well; it has
been increasing at about the rate of 14 percent a year on a $600
mllion budget. He continued as foll ows:

In addition to that, dividends from Al aska Housing
[ Fi nance Corporation (AHFC)] are down [and] school
debt is up, so | wouldn't be at all surprised to see a
$3.2 or even a $3.3 billion budget in 'O07. On the
other hand, the Capital Budget in '06 was at a little
over $300 mllion and if the legislature chose to go
back to a nore normal capital budget of $100-150
mllion, there is sone potential for reduction there.

But getting back to the retirenent system and how this
plays, on this break-even chart you've got $3.5
billion. You ve got oil at $53; $57 - [that's] break-
even there. Were we are in '07 and in the future al
depends on oil. The forecast is now ahead that occurs
in GOCctober and the nunbers wll be [released],
probably in Decenber. But | don’'t expect an oil
forecast above $50. And that supports a spending plan
of about $3.3 billion, which ... as | just said,
woul dn’t be a surpri se.

MR. TEAL noted that there is a sumary of the oil price
informati on on page 7, which shows general fund expenditures for

FY 06 at $3 billion, with an increase of $200 mllion per year
The page also shows how nuch revenue the state would have at
various prices per barrel; it conputes the surplus by

subtracting the expenditures and revenues, and shows the
curmul ati ve surplus. He continued:

You can see that we've got deficit through 2010, even

... Wwith oil at $50. So, you need $50 oil just to
break even in '07 through ['10]. At $55 a barrel, you

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE -21- Sept enber 8, 2005



show a cunul ative surplus out there, but you re back
to an annual deficits by 2010, neaning that you' re on
t he downsl i de again. ... The Chairman asked ne about
a fiscal plan, specifically the role that this
unfunded liability may play in that plan, and whether
there is any noney to reduce the unfunded liability if
you choose to do so. ... If you look at the $55
scenario, you'll see that there's a surplus in '07 of
$418 mllion, which conmbined with the surplus through
06 of a little over a billion, gives you about $1.5
billion on the table.

2:47:04 PM

MR. TEAL said one option would be to spend all the nobney at
once; however, he opined that that would not be "nmuch of a

fiscal plan." He explained that a fiscal plan generally
i nvol ves not spending noney "in sone fashion." He cited the
following options "in order of declining flexibility," as
fol |l ows: depositing the noney to the permanent fund, making it
untouchable forever; letting it fall to the [capital budget

reserve (CBR)]; putting the noney towards retirement, where it
would roll to the distant future; or putting the noney in a
public education fund. He recomended the latter. He
expl ai ned:

[It's] not ... because it costs us any noney or saves
us any noney; it just takes the noney off the table
very early in the process and noves the decision to

the full FY 07 process. So ..., rather than going
through this abbreviated supplenental process, where
the scrutiny is limted, you would put noney in the
education fund, freeing up that billion dollars, or so
Ce You could then spend it in the 'O07 budget
process. Sanme anount of noney - it just would, in
theory ..., be given nore scrutiny. Even with this,

you could pay up to $1.5 billion of the unfunded
l[iability of the retirenment systemin '07.

MR. TEAL said the state does have noney to address the problem
and, although not filling the whole gap, to nmake significant
pr ogr ess.

MR. TEAL said the question then beconmes whether the state should

fund sone of the unfunded liability, how much it should fund
and what inpact it would have on various interest groups.

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE -22- Sept enber 8, 2005



2:50:43 PM

MR. TEAL observed that the state's liability equals only about
half of the systemis liability; therefore, of the $5.7 billion

unfunded liability, approximately $3 billion is the state's.
The other $3 billion of liability belongs to the cities,
comunities, and school districts. He said that none of these
entities would ever get a bill for the $5.7 billion. He
expl ai ned:

By that | nean, it doesn’'t come due in 2017, or 2033,
or pick your date out there, because the way the
system works is that the rate increase is designed to
elimnate that unfunded liability in 25 years, neaning
that you don’'t have to do anything about it except pay
the rate increases, and your problemis solved.

So then, the primary reason to be concerned about
solutions other than rate increases is that those
I ncreases are unaccept abl e or unaffordable.

MR. TEAL said the task force needs to clarify whether [the
state] is looking for a solution to the PERS/ TRS systemw de
problem - the full $5.7 billion, or is sinply looking at the
problem from the state's perspective, saying, "W've got ... $3
billion of this unfunded liability." He said the next step is
to decide whether rate increases are an acceptable solution. He
conti nued:

If the focus is the state, |I think the rate increases
are an acceptable solution. You just increase the
operating budget [and] the nobney cones from various
fund sources. ... The critical thing here is that as
you saw |last year, the state’s liability was about $50
mllion. The general fund portion of that was only
$25 mllion. The other portion comes from federal and
ot her funds. Now, if we took that $3 billion
liability and closed it, making a $3 billion cash
injection, you'd be spending $3 billion worth of
federal general funds to fix the problem You' | | pay
for it in rates, in which case the state pays half,
and federal and other sources pay the other half. So,
| guess | would say, "Wy would you want to fix the
problem with the infusion of general funds? It costs
you twi ce as nuch than if you just let it ride."

2:54: 02 PM

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE - 23- Sept enber 8, 2005



MR. TEAL conti nued:

Teachers are now negotiating for pay increases, but
the districts look at it this way: each teacher just
costs us an additional 5 percent because of this
benefit increase, and we can’t afford to increase
take-honme pay in addition to this 5 percent. And then
you’ ve got education advocates saying, "Thank you for
funding education, but not enough of it went to the
cl assroom " The trouble here is that everybody's
right, and in this case, it ... nmay make nore sense to
pay off that unfunded liability up front in order to
keep rate increases down so the districts aren't faced
with ... the enploynent dilemma they've got right now.

MR, TEAL said he doesn't understand how any enployer can have a
benefit rate of 50 percent; he/she cannot be conpetitive because
t he enpl oyees cost too nmuch. He noted that, arguably, the state
is not responsible for comunities in the same direct manner as

for school districts. He stated that he sees the unfunded
l[iability "entering the budget state ... at school districts and
comunities.” The question, he added, is whether the state
wants to "prefund them" The unfunded liability cannot be

escaped. He expl ai ned:

If you use this ... surplus and put it towards
retirement or sonme other program that's going to cost
you now or <cost you later, what you're doing is
spending the surplus now and reducing future budgets
i nstead of increasing them So, I guess ny
recommendation is that when a surplus exists, use it.

2:56: 55 PM

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH asked, "That neans not having any |apse into the
CBR?"

2:57: 05 PM

MR. TEAL responded that he would recommend "prefunding" the
school districts, and perhaps the communities. He added, "As |
said, you've got no direct liability for comunities, but of
course, who is it you represent?" He said conmunities are far
|l ess able to afford the 5 percent increases.

2:57:41 PM

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE - 24- Sept enber 8, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked if there is a way to "get into
PERS where you just address the municipalities' enployees."”

2:57:56 PM

MR. TEAL answered yes. He surm sed that the logic is that with
the high prices of oil, the primary inpact on the state is
sur pl us revenue. He noted that [the Depart ment of

Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT&PF)], the University [of
Al aska], [and the Alaska State] Troopers are hit wth higher
fuel bills, "but that's far outweighed by the revenue increase."”
He said high oil prices don't add any revenue to the
communities, but certainly cost them noney. He stated:

That’'s the only logic | have for saying the
communities are the ones that need the noney and don’t
have the revenue sources. The state has the revenue
sources, and your question in January [was], "Are you

going to share with the communities?"

| don’t have any answers, here. ... We're certainly
willing to work with [the Division of] Retirement &
Benefits and work with you to try to find the answers,
but $5.7 billion’s a lot of nobney. W don’t have it
all now and, even if we did, there are other things to
spend the noney on.

2:59:36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked if the responsibility of the state
would be that if it bailed out some entities it would have to
bai | out others.

3:00:11 PM

MR. TEAL replied that he doesn't have an answer to that
guesti on. He suggested that the director of the Division of
Retirement & Benefits may have a better sense of what the
state's liability would be.

3:00:47 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO stated his wunderstanding that Orange

County, California, filed for bankruptcy and he suggested that
some boroughs in Alaska may file for bankruptcy.

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE - 25- Sept enber 8, 2005



3:01: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if it is
the state has not provided general
litabilities "as separate line itenm or if
in the foundation formula."

3:02: 06 PM

MR. TEAL responded:

true that historically

fund
it

monies for TRS

is "typically used

Technically, you didn't address the TRS liability -
you didn't give the school districts noney - but

certainly you knew that their liability was $40
mllion and that the increase in the base student
allocations ... was designed to pay $40 mllion to
cover their PERS liability and then another $40
mllion on top of that. ... | guess the answer is
[that] they didn't have to spend noney on TRS - the
new noney that they got in forrmula - but effectively
there's nothing else they can do. They had to pay
their bill for retirement, and you gave them noney
that they could spend on anything. So, it's pretty

hard to say which dollar precisely was used to pay the

pension liability.

You also gave nobney to comunities

And there's a

difference here, because with the comunities, you
and benefits

gave that noney directly to retire
and said the noney was intended

ment
to

r

educe their

contributions that vyear. ... | think nost of the

communities did accept their 5 percent

i ncrease and so

didn't get any w ndfall. But | know that Juneau is
i ncrease i s paid,

one community that said, "Geat, our

we just got a $1.3 mllion windfall."’

use it to pay down their pension.

They didn't

MR. TEAL, in response to a remark by Representative Rokeberg
i ndi cated that the ampbunt that Juneau received was $18 mllion.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked, "In your recollection, is that
unusual ; have we ever done that before?"

MR. TEAL responded, "Never directly, because we've never had
increases in rates like this." He said it doesn't nmtter

whether the nobney is slated as paying

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 26-

f or

a portion of a

Sept enber 8, 2005



comunity's pension liability or is |abeled conmmunity assistance
- adollar is a dollar.

3:05:13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG directed attention to a spreadsheet
attached to a Septenber 7 [2005] letter from Melanie MII horn
[included in the comrmittee packet, showing the increases in and
total for the conposite enployer contributions]. He noted that
the cumulative total for FY 06 is $386.5 mllion and $716.6
mllion for FY 09. He asked if it would be a correct assunption

to say "that delta - the differential there - would be the
anount of wunfunded Iliability for ... the next three fiscal
years."

3:06: 44 PM

MR. TEAL answered that the unfunded liability is $5.7 billion.
He added, "This is sinply the anpunt that would be generated by
the capped rate increase.”

3:07:01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG observed that the spreadsheet shows a
projected $330 million increase in the cunulative total for the
next three years, beginning in FY 06.

3:07:58 PM

MR. TEAL confirnmed that Representative Rokeberg's observation
was correct.

3:08:10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said it would be interesting to "see ...
where we have to be [for] the out years to get the bal ance.”

3:08:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M KE KELLY, Alaska State Legislature, said he
would like to see the shortfall shown in another colum. He
noted that the legislature has been told that one factor that
has not been incorporated into the actuarials regarding the
retirement system is that [life expectancies will continue to
increase], and that factor could add to the unfunded liability.
He asked Ms. MI Il horn for her opinion.

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE -27- Sept enber 8, 2005



3:10: 03 PM

M5. MLLHORN said the actuarial assunptions wll be reviewed.
She said the current nortality table in use is from 1996 and has
some built in projections; however, the actuary has indicated
that there is a 2000 nortality table avail abl e.

3:11: 30 PM

MR, TEAL clarified that the nunbers on the chart usually
understate the noney needed to close the gap. He noted that M.
MIlhorn had referred previously to a sensitivity chart which
shows a 5 percent liability increase and 3.4 [percent] inpact on
rates, versus a market asset decrease. He expl ai ned:

What that nmeans is that putting noney into the system
has a lot Iless inpact than changing your Dbenefit
payout .... It's the benefit side that ... hits you
on just your sensitivity analysis, which we can see in
bits and pieces, and which I would like to see as an

extension of chart two saying: "I want to take this
thing out - it's 5.7 now. G ven your assunptions,
what would that liability be next year, next year,
next year?" The sensitivity analysis they' ve given

you so far just says, "What's the inpact on the rate?"
That's not enough for nme to nake a decision, because |
don't know whether that rate goes for 25 years and
what it does. Do we then still close the unfunded
l[iability at 25 years? | think there's a lot of
information that you could get, or should get fromthe
actuary before you really decide what to reconmmend to

the full |egislature.
3:15: 07 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he thinks everyone needs to
understand that the $5.7 billion is the present dollar value of
the schedule of anticipated paynents to be made for benefits.
That schedule of paynment, he said, is "$15.6 unfunded." He
conti nued:

| think it's really inperative that people realize
that the present dollar cost is the calculation from
the schedule of paynents that we'll have to nmake to
retirees, and also everyone should realize that about
75 percent of all the benefits that are going to be
paid out are not from deposit noney that we get and

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE - 28- Sept enber 8, 2005



collect, but is scheduled on the growh of that asset
base. So, if our asset base is underfunded, then it's
not growing, and that's got to pay ... three-quarters
of all the benefits in the future. So, ... it becones
a very sticky problem to be carrying a |large unfunded
liability, not just because it's unfunded liability,
but because it's not growing to make those paynents.

3:17:54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG expressed his appreciation to M. Tea
for "com ng back and hel ping make the point | wanted to nake."
He said he has seen other charts better than the one being
di scussed, which made the distinction between the various
entities that had the unfunded liabilities and "where they nmay
fall." He indicated that Representative Seaton's information
"makes an interesting point that we need to focus on in terns of
public policy formation." He stated that there are four
distinct elements that make up the unfunded liability for the
state and each one calls for different policy decisions. He
added, "And | think that that's inportant ... when we tal k about
this $5.7 billion that we think of it in terns of the categories
and the entities that have that liability, which | don't believe
is ... 100 percent the province of the state general fund to
fix. And as a result | think that we need to keep that in mnd
when we discuss this in terns of our own policy discussion.” He
said he would |like to see an updated chart with nore current
i nformation regar di ng t he accrued unf unded lTabilities.
Furthernore, he said he would like to know about any other
sensitivity adjustnments before the |egislature makes any policy
call. He concl uded:

It's troublesome for ne right now, for exanple, in the
Anchorage area to have all our teachers under the
cloud of a possible strike here, when in fact there's
been absolutely alnmpbst no discussion publicly about
this extraordinary anount of the noney that the state
: is putting into the Anchorage School District
right now. It's like an assunption that this is a
given for the future, and | ... think we're doing a
di sservice to the public right now when we don't talk
about this in the proper context.

3:21: 33 PM

GARY HUTCHI SON noted that he is a resident of Fairbanks who has
been a practicing certified public accounting (CPA) for 30

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE - 29- Sept enber 8, 2005



years, providing services to nunicipalities under governnment
accounting and governnent auditing standards. He revealed his
background as the current presiding officer of the Fairbanks
North Star Borough, and as one who has served on the assenbly
for six years; however, he specified that he was not testifying
on behalf of the borough or the assenbly.

VR. HUTCHI SON offered suggestions for dealing wth the
defi ci ency. He stated that he understood M. Teal to have said
that the surplus from the higher oil prices wll not be
sufficient to elimnate the deficiency. He said that is a
significant point that underscores the need for the ability to
change benefits. The Al aska State Constitution and the suprene
court interpretation of it prohibits the adjustnment of benefits
of current enployees, he said; therefore, he reconmended that
the constitution be changed "to elimnate the effect of that
suprene court decision.” He said if people work [|onger,
benefits woul d be nore affordable.

3:24: 05 PM

MR, HUTCHI SON said his second suggestion would be to have |arge
funds contributed into the PERS/ TRS retirenent systens soon. He

said, "If we could get a constitutional anendnent so that you
had sone flexibility in adjusting benefits, you' d have a new
basis for an actuarial calculation.” He said surpluses should

not be spent on the general fund and should not be allowed to go
in the CBR, they either should be put into PERS/TRS or into a
fund that the | egislature can access with a 51 percent vote.

3:24: 27 PM

MR. HUTCHI SON said he thinks nore needs to be known regarding
"why we are where we're at." He said he was puzzled in the past
that the projected cost increases for the [state's] retirenent
program were “"flat" when other [private] businesses were

incurring increases in health costs of 15-30 percent. He
remar ked, "That went on for years and | used to think ..., 'Boy,
they nust have a wonderful system here that contains costs.''
He added, "OF course, we see now that that's not the case." He

said it's inportant to know why those assunptions were wong
and the legislature should know whether or not controls need to
be put in place to ensure that the best estimates from actuari al
cal cul ations are used, rather than the nost favorable ones.

3:25:53 PM

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE - 30- Sept enber 8, 2005



CHARLES GALLAGHER, Chair, Retired Public Enployees of Al aska,
Nort hern Region Chapter, stated that when he |ooked at his PERS
retirement account and conpared it to his [Supplenental Benefits
System (SBS)] account, he realized that his PERS funds had been
used for the past 25-30 years that he worked for the state in
order to accommodate the needs of the tax payers in the 90s. He
explained that his PERS funds were accumulated at the rate of
2.3 percent, whereas his SBS was often accunulating at the rate
of 18 percent, which is what allowed himto retire. He said he
mrrors M. Teal's recommendation that "this be forward-funded
into an Escrow account in order to acconmodate the needs of what
could be coming up in the next two years.”" He also agreed with
M. Teal that the reason the noney should be in the Escrow
account is "to allow a little bit nore tinme in the situation to
devel op. "

3:28:11 PM

DORIS ROBBINS, Menber, Retired Public Enployees of Al aska
(RPEA), testifying on behalf of RPEA revealed that she is
retired from the Departnent of Labor. She said RPEA has been
working actively with its nmenbers to help reduce the cost of
health care. For exanple, nmany nmenbers have taken generic drugs

whenever possible and changed to nmil order prescription in
order to save the system noney. She stated that she feels like
the real problens have been ignored "at this point." She said

"This is the kind of investigation that should have been done
before a bill was passed without it being thoroughly analyzed.
So, now | hope you will go back, ... follow up on these things,
and try to find a solution.” She said she contracted with the

state for retirenent and benefits, thus, they are guaranteed by
the Alaska State Constitution, and she expects them to be
honored. She suggested that perhaps the current higher price of
oil will help the problem

3:30:18 PM

M5. ROBBINS said part of the underfunding problem occurred when
retirement incentive prograns (RIPs) took place in the past
wi thout the funding for them being put into the system at the
time. She said she was told that when an enployee retired early
[through a RIP], "that noney would be put into the system which
would make up the difference from what they would have made,
perhaps at their higher range, and then a |ower new enployee
woul d have come in and taken that job and been paid a |esser
rate.” She suggested what may have happened is that sonetines
those positions were rewitten at a higher grade and given

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE - 31- Sept enber 8, 2005



hi gher sal ari es. She asked the committee to look into that.
She said the health care problem is nationwi de and "we need to
encourage our people in [Washington] D.C. to work on that." She
noted that drug conpanies are nmaking nore than Wall Street or,
for that matter, anyone else in the whole world. She said there
has been discussion about a health maintenance account that was
put forth by Aetna; it's a programthat has been used across the
country. She said although it costs sonething to start up,
getting people to get regular health checks saves noney in the
long run, because it can prevent the higher cost of energency
care. She said she works on a commttee that is studying ways
to solve the problem of health care costs, and she told the
committee she is glad to see the legislature taking a positive
approach "to actually do sonething about the problem"”

3:32:59 PM

RICHARD SCLIE, Ph.D., stated his understanding that the primary
purpose of the hearings is to address the unfunded liability.
He noted that he had prefaced his witten testinony [included in
the commttee packet] wth some recomended changes to the
retirement plan adopted through SB 141. He said he thinks it
was at least inplied by a nunber of legislators that there would
be further exam nation of that plan before its effective date of
FY 06, and he urged the conmttee not to "overl ook that aspect.”

3:34: 07 PM

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH clarified, "Wiile the major thrust of this
committee was to look at the unfunded liability and address
that, it was not to overlook potential recommendations for

change if they were constructive and sonething we could
recomend to the legislature.”

3:34: 25 PM

DR. SCOLIE, regarding the funding shortfall, opined that the
ultimate shortfall will turn out to be significantly |arger than
the $5.7 billion estimate in the 2004 actuarial reports from

Mercer Human Resource Consulting. He explained that in the 2004
report, the actuary continued to make assunptions that were
simlar to those that led to the previous understatenent of the
l[iability. He named three assunptions:

First [is] the <continued underestimate of future

health care inflation. And as | indicated in ny
witten testinony, their assunptions dropped that

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE - 32- Sept enber 8, 2005



inflation trend down to 5 percent by FY 14, and we
have an experience that goes back to FY 78, show ng an
average of 10 percent a year. And | think it is
i ncunbent on us to nmake sure that we don't use an
unrealistic assunption there and get ourselves back in
the sane jam

[ Second, is the] continued reliance on the outdated
life expectancies and the nortality data. The

| ong-established trend line shows |ife expectancies
i ncreasing at about two years per decade - that's life
expectancy at birth - and yet Mercer continues to use
outdated data in that regard.

A third thing is that | think we're using an
unrealistically high assunption regarding investnent
returns. Now unl ess these assunptions are corrected,
any action that the legislature takes to cover the
funding shortfall could fall billions of dollars short
of actually dealing with the problem And | think the
very difficult decisions that the legislature has to
face in this wupcomng session wll be nultiplied
greatly if you have to cone back and face a simlar
probl ema few years down the |ine.

So, | would urge you to press very hard to make sure
those assunptions are as realistic as possible and
that the true nature of the problem is truly
understood at the tine when the issues are dealt wth.

3:37:22 PM

DR. SCLIE stated that he has no special know edge in regard to
covering the unfunded liability, thus his comrents woul d be nmade
as "an ignorant citizen." He stated his belief that the onus
should be on the State of Alaska, and a significant portion of
the surplus resulting from high oil prices, for exanple, should

be "considered for application to that." He said that at the
sane tine he thinks sone added cost can and probably should be
borne by enpl oyers. He said he is not certain [how much] that

shoul d be, but suggested that one starting point may be the
| evel of increases that have already been put into place.

DR. SCLIE said he thinks consideration should be given to

pension obligation bonds (POBs); however, he said their
potential negatives should be weighed carefully along with the
potential positives of savings. If POBs are to be part of

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE - 33- Sept enber 8, 2005



package, he stated, the sooner a decision is made, the better,
because interest rates are going up and the advantage that m ght
be gained through the use of POBs wi Il disappear. Beyond t hat,
he said that he is afraid consideration my have to be given to
drawing on the permanent fund; although he said M. Teal's
suggestion to extend paynents "on the state side out for an
indefinite period of tinme" may be the best solution. M. Solie
st at ed:

If it's determned that the permanent fund has to be
capped - either in terms of the earnings or
conceivably in terms of the corpus of the pernmanent
fund - certainly considerable effort is going to have
to be undertaken to inform and convince the genera
public, because to tap the wearnings is going to
require courage on the part of the legislature, but |
think will only exist if the public supports it. To
tap the principal, of course, is going to require a
change in the [Alaska State] Constitution [and] a vote
of the people, and that would require significant
public information."

3:40: 09 PM

DR. SOLIE said in that regard he thinks it mght be helpful to
obtain a decision of ruling from the Al aska Suprenme Court as to
what the actual obligation is of the State of Alaska wth
respect to the pension obligations. He referred to previous
di scussi on about who would pick up the bill if a municipality
were to fail to pay and go bankrupt.

3:40: 43 PM
JEFF JOHNSON said he is long-term resident of Alaska who has

practiced as a certified public accountant (CPA) for 30 years,
including auditing and advising on defined benefit, defined

contribution, and health plans. He revealed that he is also a
menber of the Fairbanks City Council. Regarding the $5.7
billion wunfunded liability, he said, "As we address that
problem we, as council nenbers and as |egislators, are unable
to pay a bill that's accrued for past benefits, and that we
think future generations further than 25 years out - unborn
children - will have better economic neans to pay these bills."

M. Johnson said a projection is needed to find out what the
result of a continued increnental increase of 5 percent would
be. He said:

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE - 34- Sept enber 8, 2005



Because the interest on [$5.7 billion] to roughly 8
percent of that could be $400-500 nillion, we know
we're going negative - we're not going positive. So,

we're over $6 billion dollars right now, assum ng al
the actuarial assunptions are correct, and | totally
agree wth Dr. Solie - we know when they're not
correct. So, we're probably closer to $7 billion
ri ght now.

3:42: 53 PM

MR. JOHNSON stated his wunderstanding that the CBR currently
amounts to $2 billion. He asked what the paynments paid by the
State of Alaska would have been from '95 forward if the state
had inplenmented the correct assunptions back in the early 90s
He stated his belief that that nunber would probably be $1
billion. He clarified, "So, would we really have $2 billion in
the constitutional budget reserve right now? No, we would have
had to spend that noney already had we used correct assunptions
ten years ago." Part of the CBR exists, he said, because the
state underfunded PERS and TRS in the past.

MR. JOHNSON nentioned a large pension plan in Alaska that is
being paid off in 15 years conpared to the State of Al aska that

will be paying for 30-40 years. If the state were to pay off
the unfunded liability through financing and did so over 15
years, he said, the prem um would be approximately $309 mllion

a year. He continued:

If the bill was only $5 billion, we could pay this off
in 15 years, if we slanmmed. Now | know the bill is
nore than $5  Dbillion, but the concept of the
di fference between 6 percent and 8.25 - it's about $50
mllion. So, there's a lot of risk wth pension
obligation bonds, but if you believe it, and we
research it, and we say it works, we save $700 million
for the State of Alaska over 15 years - and that's a
gross nunber, not a preset val ue.

MR. JOHNSON i ndi cat ed t hat if t he contri butions to
muni ci palities and school districts were frozen at 20 percent,
then those entities would know that "the state's going to take
care of the big picture” and would be able to set a budget. He
said a plan was put together with actuarial benefit assunptions
made 25 years ago [that] were erroneous, yet they were the best
assunptions known at the tine. The volatility of the plan
dictates that there will be major changes. He said, "These

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE - 35- Sept enber 8, 2005



changes have all been economcally disastrous for the state
right now." He continued:

The City of Fairbanks ... signed on and said, "Hey,
join this, it's a great program and send us 10
percent, roughly, a year, [or] 15 percent and life is

good."” Qur projected PERS rate right now, if we want
to pay our bill off in 25 years - this is the rate
established two years ago - is 100 percent. W have

to pay 100 percent of our eligible enployees right now
- that's our burden, just for PERS, but when we signed
on, everyone really felt that the cost would be closer

to 10 or 15 percent. So, | believe it is a state

pr obl em
3:48: 02 PM
BILL BJORK, President, NEA-Alaska, noted that he submtted
witten testinony [included in the commttee packet]. He
enphasi zed that NEA- Al aska believes that the first critical step
is to well define the nagnitude of the problem and that an

i ndependent actuary is needed to review the current retirenent
systens to determine what actuarial assunptions ought to be

appl i ed. He noted that the actuary retained by Legislative
Council, Joseph Esuchanko, had testified during a previous
heari ng and much of his information was illustrative.

MR BIJORK reviewed that the assunption that Mercer Human
Resources Consulting applied is a 3.5 percent rate of inflation.
Al aska's experience over any 10-year period is 2.6 percent. The

permanent fund, which he said is well respected for good
managenent, uses a 3 percent inflation figure, as does the
Governor's office. He noted that the difference between a 3
percent and 3.5 percent is huge; a half a percent over 30 years
is $1 billion. He said it is vital that everyone agrees on what

rates to apply.

MR. BJORK stated that wage growh is another issue. Mercer uses
a 3.75-4.5 percent figure for wage growth, he said, but nost
enpl oyees in state governnment have experienced far |ess.
Teachers' salaries, for exanple, "have grown by 1.36 percent per
year over the last 17 years." The largest increase in salary,
he noted, was 3.23 percent experienced "this last vyear." He
said |[NEA-Al aska] believes it ought to be decided which
actuarial assunption is the correct one to apply.

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE - 36- Sept enber 8, 2005



MR. BJORK nentioned nedical costs and said he agrees with Dr.
Solie regarding the rate applied by Mercer after 2014. He said,
"There just is virtually no basis in fact for annual increases

dropping to 5 mgically in 2014." He said M. Esuchanko
recommended projecting at 7.5 percent. He added, "W've nodel ed
it ourselves at 8 percent, annually. The assunptions used by

the actuary "ought to be in line with Alaska reality,"” he said
He concl uded:

We appreciate the information provided today on the
l[iability associated wth each tier in ... PERS and
TRS .... | think that's illustrative | ook forward to
the conversation at future nmeetings in that area.

In the area of nmedical costs, NEA-Al aska has sone
experi ence managing care. W believe that the nedical
system provided for our retirees is right for managed
care - not reduction of benefits, but nanaged care.
We know how to do it, and we could help in that area.

3:52:52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG noted that the conmittee is hearing
chal l enges to Mercer's actuarial assunptions. He said he would
i ke an oversight into what the next actuarial contract wll be
and what kind of controls will be built into it.

3:53:45 PM

WAYNE HEIMER, testifying on behalf of hinself, told the
commttee that he is a retired wildlife biologist in Tier | of
the retirenment system He surmsed that the commttee is trying
to nodel a system wthout knowing the assunptions. He
expressed appreciation of the commttee's work. He said it
looks |ike the state is in trouble because it received bad
assunptions in the past and the |legislature nust boldly do what
it can. He stated his belief that not much can be done about
the investnment market, and he said he does not think it's
practical to "dink too nmuch with the existing benefits." He
said he thinks that neans the legislature nust do something with
"the cash infusion." He said he has heard sone creative ideas
from people who seem to know what they're talking about. He

urged the comrmittee to "look strongly at that cash infusion by
what ever plan there is,” and to be fair, w se, and pronpt.

3:55: 50 PM

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE - 37- Sept enber 8, 2005



DON GRAY, testifying on behalf of hinmself, stated that because
of the passage of SB 141, new public service enployees in PERS
and TRS will not contribute to the pool of funds for earlier
retirees starting July 1, 2006. Conversely, the enployers in
the State of Alaska, the boroughs, cities, and I|ocal school

districts wll still have the obligations that previously
existed in the systens. He supported M. Teal's previous
testinmony regarding the advantage to paying down the unfunded
liability sooner rather than |later, because it "reduces the pain
on school districts and municipalities, in particular.” He nade
the assunption that that would also reduce "the pain” on |oca

t axpayers. He conti nued:

Money is rather fungible; you can spend it in one part
of a budget and save in another part of a budget. | t
does becone a form of nunicipal revenue sharing, but
one where the legislature can direct that public noney
is spent as intended and is not sinply a windfall, as
referred to earlier. As you indicated, it's pay now
or pay |later. If you postpone state paynent, | ocal
taxpayers wll feel the annual increased enployer
contribution rate. It's fair that the state prepays
for borough enployers, city enployers, [and] | ocal
school districts, as well as the State of Al aska, and
for school districts in wunorganized boroughs where
they're ... 100 percent state funded - not [funded] by
| ocal taxpayers.

MR. GRAY recalled that Dr. Solie had previously spoken to
anending SB 141, so that the ability to recruit and retain

future quality enployees is addressed. He recommended Dr.
Solie's letter dated August 17 be included in the conmttee
packet . He noted that both city councilmn, Jeff Johnson, and
borough assenbly chair, Gary Hutchison are CPAs, as well as
el ected public officials. He stated his belief that the

opinions of those two nmen reflect both their professional and
political perspectives, thus he asked the comrttee to "heed
their comrents.” He again urged the commttee to pay down the
unfunded liability sooner rather than |ater.

3:58: 36 PM

V. K LAHDENPERA, testifying on behalf of herself, reveal ed that
she is a second-generation Al askan who has worked for 35 years
as a public health nurse manager for the Minicipality of
Anchorage. She stated that she was opposed to parts of SB 141,
and she requested a copy of Dr. Solie's letter. She i ndicated

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE - 38- Sept enber 8, 2005



that the results of SB 141 will be that the state will have a
probl em obtaining quality professionals. She explained that
years ago the nurses enployed by the state were the best paid,
but now are the worst paid. The PERS benefit was a draw in the
past, but now it's gone. She indicated that the state could
find itself in big trouble during a natural disaster if it does
not have enough qualified people in the public health system
She said after hearing M. Teal's testinony she is not sure any
audit is necessary, because it 1is such an expense. She
i ndicated that she thinks preventative nedicine can reduce the
cost of health care.

4:03:10 PM

M5. LAHDENPERA, regarding SB 141, said the average person is not
versed in financial investnents and it's costly to hire a
financial advisor on a routine basis. She indicated that she
hopes there could be options in the retirement plan regarding
i nvest nents. She stated that she |oved being a governnent
enpl oyee, and she said she feels strongly that the |egislature
and the State of Al aska enployees need to work closely together
on the issue.

4:04:32 PM

KEVIN RITCHI E, Al aska Muni ci pal League, expressed hi s
appreciation of the commttee's focus on the problem He said
that over the years, nunicipalities and school districts have
nmet on a regular basis and will "continue to try to contribute
positively to the process.” He said AM. agrees wth
Represent ati ve Rokeberg that each of the categories of enployers
needs to be | ooked at individually. He continued:

As ... [M.] Teal stated, the liability that's accrued
to municipalities and school districts is $3 billion -
give or take - but ... [Ms.] MIlhorn said and

Representative Seaton enphasized [that] the 5 percent
i ncrease, which is very significant to nunicipalities,
still isn't paying the bills. In other words, what
the actuaries are seeing is that the average percent
of salary paid by both municipalities and the state
needs to be sonmewhere in the neighborhood of 40
percent. Going up 5 percent a year is not paying the
bills, and the real costs are accruing because of
essentially -- and | don't want to call it interest
charges, but it works the sane way. The liability
that you see on the part of the municipalities - about

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE - 39- Sept enber 8, 2005



$3 billion - the state is charging or adding to the
liability of municipalities at the rate of 8.25

percent a year. So, in other words, on that $3
billion, that's growing by about a quarter of a
mllion dollars a year, because of that 8.25 percent
| oss of revenue that ... otherwise the state would get

through investnents if that noney were actually there.
So, in essence it's like a loan at 8.25 percent which
is accruing interest at a very substantial rate.

To give you an idea of the quarter billion dollar
increase in nunicipal liability each year: that's
about 33 percent of all the property taxes collected
by nmunicipalities. So, vyou'd have to increase

property taxes about 33 percent just to do an
interest-only approach to the growing liability. So,
it's a very significant issue for |ocal taxpayers.

MR RITCHE, referring to M. Teal's previous comments regarding
the state's present oil revenue boom said:

Wile the state is accruing significant amounts of
noney every tinme the price of oil goes up, according
to OMB several nonths ago, at |east, there's about $65
mllion for every $1 increase. But according to the
Institute for Social & Economic Research in the
University of Alaska, Alaskans are using about 20
mllion barrels of oil per year. So, in essence, when
the price of oil goes up one dollar, [it means] $65
mllion dollars in new revenue to the state, but $20
mllion of new increases to school districts,
muni cipalities, famlies, [and] businesses. And of
course, those costs are nuch higher in rural areas
where the cost of oil and the cost of transportation

are so nuch higher. So, that does expand the
financi al problem that nunicipalities are facing
during the oil ... revenue boom

4:08: 24 PM

MR. RITCH E echoed the sentinents of previous speakers that any
changes to assunptions should be made known. He said if there's
any possibility of constitutionally acceptable cost savings,
that woul d be sonething that nunicipalities and school districts
strongly support. Looki ng at POBs is a priority of
muni ci palities, he said. He enphasized what sone other speakers
had said regarding acting sooner rather than |ater because of

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE - 40- Sept enber 8, 2005



rising interest rates. He said that certainly a "pay-down into

the systenf is a long-term benefit to all nunicipalities. He
said he would Iike the commttee to consider putting a cap on
contributions by municipalities and school districts, "in that
the bulk of the resource revenues obviously accrue to the state,
not the nmunicipalities or school districts.” He said that m ght

be a way of sorting out the liability in a way that's equitable
and affordable for nmunicipalities and school districts. He told
the commttee that finance directors and |eaders have a |ot of
great information and ideas and could help define the nunicipa
side and school district side of the financial issue for the
comittee.

4:10: 26 PM

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH t hanked the Fairbanks delegation, particularly
Representatives Kelly, Ranras, CGuttenberg, and Coghill, and all
t he peopl e in Fairbanks who showed up to the neeting there.

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

Special Committee on Ways and Means neeting was adjourned at
4:10:16 PM

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE -41- Sept enber 8, 2005



